
Local Access Forum  - 8 October 2020 1

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

Dear LAF Member

A meeting of the LOCAL ACCESS FORUM will be held in THE VIRTUAL 
MEETING - PYF ON THURSDAY, 8TH OCTOBER, 2020 AT 2.00 PM when 
your attendance is requested.

It will be assumed that all papers and documents distributed in advance of 
the meeting have been read.

1 WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES (CHAIRMAN) 

To receive apologies for absence. 

2 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF 10TH MEETING HELD ON 
20TH FEBRUARY 2020  (CHAIRMAN) (Pages 3 - 6)

To authorise the Chairman to sign the minutes as a true record of the previous 
meetings 

3 MATTERS ARISING NOT OTHERWISE APPEARING ON AGENDA  
( CHAIRMAN) 

4 ROWIP  AND WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDED ACCESS 
PROJECTS (RICHARD BALL)  

5 LLYN Y FAN FACH ACCESS (CHAIRMAN) 

6 ACCESS REFORM ADVISORY GROUP  (RICHARD BALL/ LISA 
LLOYD) 

7 ENRAW PROJECT (RICHARD BALL) 

8 BBNPA RESTRUCTURE  ( PAUL SINNADURAI) 

9 LAF MEMBERS TERMS OF OFFICE  (RICHARD BALL) 

Public Document Pack



Local Access Forum  - 8 October 2020 2

10 OFF ROAD MOTORBIKES - POSSIBLE CHANGES TO 
LEGISLATION  (CHAIRMAN) 

11 ACCESS TO GRWYNEY FAWR RESERVOIR  (CHAIRMAN) 

12 BRIDLEWAY MAINTENANCE (HWYEL MORGAN) 

13 ANY OTHER COMPETENT BUSINESS  (CHAIRMAN) 

Any other business as is, in the opinion of the Chairman, of such urgency as to 
warrant consideration. 

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Richard Ball – 
Richard.Ball@beacons-npa.gov.uk 

mailto:Richard.Ball@beacons-npa.gov.uk


Brecon Beacons National Park Local Access Forum  

Confirmed Minutes of the 10th Meeting held at 2pm on Thursday 20th February 2020 at 

BBNPA Offices, Brecon 

 

Present 

Ian Mabberley (IM) - Chairman 

Richard Ball (RB) - Secretary 

Pam Bell (PB)  

Philippa Cherryson (PC) 

Stuart France (SF) 

Debra Hughes (DH) 

Ian Jenkins (IJ) 

Hywel Morgan (HM) 

Josie Pearson (JP) 

Ruth Pickvance (RP) 

Steve Rayner (SR) 

Dave Sharman (DS) 

Kathryn Whitrow (KW) 

Colin Woodley (CW)   

 

Observers 

Eifion Jones (EJ)   Rights of Way Officer BBNPA  

Lisa Lloyd    Rights of Way Assistant BBNPA  

Caroline Ferguson   Carmarthenshire County Council 

Rob Penn    Million Trees for the Brecon Beacons Project 

Keith Powell   Million Trees for the Brecon Beacons Project 

Freya Morgan   Brecon to Hay Greenway 

 

1. Welcome, Introductions and apologies 

IM welcomed members and observers to the meeting. Apologies were received from Toby Veall, 

Tracy Purnell, Denis Murphy, Siôn James, Paul Sinnadurai and Sarah Tindal (NRW). 

2. Confirmation of Minutes of 9th Meeting held on 13th November 2019 

The minutes were accepted, and the Chairman authorised to sign them as a correct record. 

 

3. Matters arising not otherwise appearing on agenda 

Llyn y Fan Fach – Still no response from Dŵr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW), regarding the access 

at Llyn y Fan Fach. RB advised to contact the Managing Director or CEO. 

 

Enabling Natural Resources and Well Being (ENRAW) – RB confirmed that Powys CC, BBNPA and 

Canal and Rivers Trust are hoping to resubmit a joint bid by the March deadline, PCC will be the lead 

partner. 

 

SF suggested a future project to improve access along a 100m section of the A479 in Tretower. It 

would provide a safer link between Tretower and Cwmdu as the Trunk Roads would not consider 

improvements due to it not being within a 30mph area. RB suggested raising the issue with Powys CC. 

 

4. Million Trees for the Brecon Beacons National Park project 

IM welcomed Rob Penn (RP) and Keith Powell (KP) to the meeting. KP gave members an update on 

the Bryn Arw Woodland Creation following the LAF site visit In October 2018. The scheme is fully 

funded and planting of 175,000 native broadleaf trees is due to take place next winter, 2020/21. The 

Bryn Arw planting is being used as a pilot for the Million Trees for the Brecon Beacons National Park 

project. The project aims to plant a million trees on 400ha of private land in the National Park. £4.5 

million pounds needs to be raised from corporate sponsorship, crowd funding and micro finance 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



initiatives in the local community. A charity called ‘Stump up for trees’ has been set up and it’s hoped 

that the project will be sustainable and replicable to other Communities. 

 

It is planned to have an educational component and two local secondary schools have agreed to be 

involved in the Bryn Arw Pilot scheme. It is also planned to have other elements of public good in 

each planting area such as public access or targeted biodiversity improvements depending on the 

location. Woodland Trust have given 1 million trees to the project. 

 

IM Thanked both KP and RP for attending the meeting. 

 

5. Proposed Brecon to Hay cycle path (Brecon to Hay Greenway) 

 

IM welcomed Freya Morgan (FM) to the meeting. FM gave a presentation to Members on the proposed 

Brecon to Hay Greenway. The proposal is looking at creating a traffic free path along the route of the 

Brecon to Hay Railway. An initial feasibility study was commissioned and carried out by Sustrans, it 

found that a large part of the line is intact and that there are grounds to continue with the project. 

The 25km route is owned by multiple landowners and they would need to look at how to secure 

access, there are also a number of sections where the line has been built over and alternative routes 

would need to be considered. 

 

Following a public survey the group has decided to target the route in sections rather than as a whole. 

The first section they plan to look at is Talgarth to Three Cocks or Glasbury to Hay-on-Wye. 

 

KW asked if consideration had been given to the increased liability and maintenance for landowners. 

FM agreed that arrangements for future maintenance of the route would need to be built into the 

strategy together with agreements over liabilities and other responsibilities. 

 

CF recommended speaking to Carmarthenshire CC officers as they have been involved in the creation 

of the Tywi Valley Cycle Path. 

 

RB suggested contacting Vincent Goodwin at Powys CC as he may be able to advise on Active Travel 

funding. 

 

IJ asked how much the project would cost and what type of surface they envisage using. FM said that 

the preferred surface type would be tarmac as, although it’s more expensive it would last longer. The 

cost of the project would be in the region of £10m for the entire length of the route. 

 

IM thanked FM for attending the LAF and giving the presentation. 

 

6.Access Reform Advisory group (ARAG) 

EJ is a member of the ARAG steering group established by the Welsh Government and explained the 

structure of the 3 expert groups looking at proposed access reforms. Group 1 is looking at the 

extension of rights on Access Land designated under the CROW Act. Group 2 is looking at changes 

to rights of way and group 3 is looking at digital mapping. Each group is made up of nine members, 

three each from the public sector, recreational sectors and landowner sectors. RB is a members of 

group 1 and LL is a member of group 3. The first meeting of the expert groups was in the first week 

Page 4



of February and further meeting are scheduled for March, July and November. The Steering group will 

take the findings of the expert groups and deliver recommendations to the Minister.  

RB and LL gave a brief update following the first expert group meetings. 

 

 

7. Waterfall Country Update  

James Lawrence, BBNPA Visitor Management Officer, provided the LAF with a written update. 

 

Comin Y Rhos 

• A meeting between Commoners, landowners and BBNPA wardens in 2018 sought to 

understand concerns and find solutions to visitor pressure in the vicinity of Comin y Rhos – specifically 

in relation to peak visitor parking 

• This resulted in a series of temporary interventions to limit visitors from verge parking at peak 

times which unchecked reduced the highway to a narrow single lane, causing commoners and local 

residents distress in being unable to attend their stock and access their homes and landholdings 

• BBNPA was successful in securing Welsh Government (Unfunded Pressures in 2019) funding 

to formalise some of these interventions and develop wider landscape and partnership based 

proposals. 

• BBNPA used part of this funding to commission Powys Highways to design a traffic 

management scheme to prevent verge parking (between the entrance to the showground field and the 

turning for Carn-y-crochan) and allow for the creation of up to 20 additional off road spaces on the 

narrow section of common near to the entrance to Clyn-Gwyn bunkhouse/ Sgwd Clun-gwyn 

• BBNPA held an initial meeting with adjacent landowners in January 2020 to review the 

proposed options prior to a full public consultation which is to be held in the Ystradfellte Village Hall 

on the 24th March, final designs can then be presented for planning and commons consent 

• BBNPA have also commissioned Powys Highways to cover this section of highway with a 

traffic order (double yellow lines) to make it an offense to park outside of designated parking bays, 

such was the severity of peak congestion in this area  

 

In further news: 

• An identical traffic order has also been applied to the road outside Gwaun Hepste between 

the Cwm Porth turning and Ystradfellte turning (if heading in to the village from the A4059) and will 

receive double yellow lines at the same time as Comin y Rhos – this is to help prevent parking in 

passing places 

• BBNPA Officers/ Wardens will be meeting with and working alongside Dyfed Powys Police, 

local communities and landowners to again provide overflow parking on private land during 2020 and 

identify other ways in which to improve on the traffic management interventions of the previous two 

years 

• Severn Wye consultants have now been appointed by Pontneddfechan Community Council to 

carry out a study into the feasibility of a Community Interest Company or similar model, working with 

residents and businesses to derive community benefit from visitor footfall. This project was funded by 

Pen-y-Cwmoedd windfarm and match funding from SDF 

 

8. BBNPA Structure 

Paul Sinnadurai, BBNPA Natural Resources Manager, provided members with a written update on 

the BBNPA restructure and “Change Programme”. 

 

Page 5



9. Welsh Government funding  

Paul Sinnadurai, BBNPA Natural Resources Manager, provided members with a written update on 

Welsh Government funding and the new funding streams to be launched by NRW in April 2020 to 

accompany the Area Statements. 

 

 

10. Area Statements 

The Area Statements are due to go live in April 2020. NRW confirmed that BBNPA staff would have 

a personal contact within NRW’s Mid Area who can coordinate across the South West, South Central 

and South East Area’s when enquiries or projects relate to those other parts of the Park within these 

Area boundaries. Mid Wales staff will provide this ‘linking up’ service to save BBNPA staff having 

multiple NRW contacts. 

 

11. Any Other Competent Business 

 

Rights of Way Diversion applications 

Members discussed the recent consultation on the application to divert the footpath at Newcourt, 

Community of Gwernyfed. Members discussed the merits of including access improvements such 

replacing gates with stiles in the LAF’s response to consultations. 

 

Data Collection 

IJ outlined his proposal for gathering well-being and economic data related to the BBNP. Meetings 

have been held with a number of universities and the proposal given to them. Discussions were quite 

positive and it’s hoped that some data will be able to be collected this year. IJ will circulate the proposal 

to Members. 

 

RB suggested looking into Sustainable Development Funding and recommended speaking to Sunita 

Welch regarding the BBNPA Visitor Survey. CW also highlighted the Waterfalls survey. 

 

Events 

DH asked if the BBNPA had been consulted on the Black Mountains 3 Peaks Challenge which is being 

held soon. There are concerns amongst local farmers that no consultation had been carried out and 

that the event is taking place at a very sensitive time of year with ewes heavy in lamb. 

 

Members had a general discussion around the number of events being held and the cumulative effect 

on the areas where the events take place. 

 

Date of the next meeting: 

 

14th May 2020, Venue to be confirmed. 

Page 6


	Agenda
	2 Confirmation of Minutes of 10th Meeting held on 20th February 2020  (Chairman)

